- ,aUI.TNO

“_Gs
w o g
&

g

@

&
e, o
” conser'®

ad

Dstrics

Personnel Committee Meeting Agenda
East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District
Wednesday, January 18, 2023, 5:00 — 6:30 PM
To be held at the EMSWCD Office at 5211 N Williams Ave, Portland, OR 97217 or join virtually
https://meet.goto.com/458561837 Toll Free: 1 877 309 2073 US: +1 (571) 317-3129 Access Code: 458-561-837

(January 11, 2023)

AGENDA
Item #| Time Board Meeting Agenda Item Purpose Presenter R
5:00 . . . Discussion
A ~ | Committee Chair Assignment . / Masterson N/A
10 min Decision
Welcome and meeting called to order:
e Introductions
1 5:10 |, Review/revi q Information/ Committee a) 6/13/2022
5 min ev!ew revise agenda Decision Chair Meeting Minutes
e Review and Approve June 2022
Minutes
. Survey Results from Staff Performance i
2 5'1_5 v ) Discussion Ha.mllt.on/ a) Survey Results
20 mins | Evaluations Critchfield
. Schedule of Annual Review of HR
3 5'3_5 Discussion Hamilton a)  Schedule of .
15 mins | Documents Annual HR Review
) a) Current Board
4 1‘:"5_0 Timeline for Board Handbook Discussion Hamilton Policies &
mins Procedures
. Merit Vs. Step-Increase Preliminar
5 6'0‘5 . . P v Discussion Hamilton N/A
20 mins | Discussion
CLOSING ITEMS
2 e Announcements and reminders
6 Smlf e Action items Information Masterson N/A
¢ Adjourn meeting

Packet materials referenced above available in hardcopy by request or electronically at: http://emswcd.org/about/board/meetings/

Page 1 of 2



https://meet.goto.com/458561837
tel:+18773092073,,458561837
tel:+15713173129,,458561837
http://emswcd.org/about/board/meetings/

WULTH,
o °,

Y

EJ/“’E Personnel Committee Meeting Agenda (January 11, 2023)
i&"g‘ East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District
" comser®” Wednesday, January 18, 2023, 5:00 — 6:30 PM

To be held at the EMSWCD Office at 5211 N Williams Ave, Portland, OR 97217 or join virtually
https://meet.goto.com/458561837 Toll Free: 1 877 309 2073 US: +1 (571) 317-3129 Access Code: 458-561-837

EMSWCD Board Members, Committees and Meeting Dates

EMSWCD Board EMSWCD Committees
Members Positions Officers Budget | Land Legacy | Personnel Grants PIC
Joe Rossi Director - Zone 1 X X X
Laura Masterson Director - Zone 2 Secretary X X X
Mike Guebert Director - Zone 3 Chair X X X
Uim Carlson Director - At-Large 1 Treasurer X X X
Uasmine Zimmer-Stucky | Director - At-Large 2 Vice Chair X X X X
Upcoming Schedule
July 6 X
August 1 X
September X X
2022 October 3 17
November 7 21
December 5
FY22-23
January 4 30 18
February 6
March 6 27
2023 April 3 17
May 1 1 22
June 5

EMSWCD prohibits discrimination in all of its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age,
disability, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, political
beliefs, reprisals, because all or part of an individual’s income is derived from any public assistance program or based
on any other group or affiliation. EMSWCD will not condone or tolerate prejudicial remarks, actions, slurs, or jokes
expressed and directed at or to any person. Any employee who behaves in such a manner while conducting EMSWCD’s
business will be subject to disciplinary action including possible termination. EMSWCD is an equal opportunity provider

and employer.

Meeting attendees requiring Americans with Disabilities Act accommodations should call (503) 222-7645 x 100 as soon as

possible. To better serve you, five (5) business days prior to the event, is preferred.

Packet materials referenced above available in hardcopy by request or electronically at: http://emswcd.org/about/board/meetings/

Page 2 of 2


https://meet.goto.com/458561837
tel:+18773092073,,458561837
tel:+15713173129,,458561837
http://emswcd.org/about/board/meetings/

ad

Ustricr

EMSWCD January 2023 Personnel Committee Meeting Item 1a

6/13/2022

East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

EMSWCD PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING FINAL MINUTES
Monday, June 13, 2022

4:06 pm- Call to Order

Masterson called to order the EMSWCD Personnel Committee meeting at 4:06 pm on Monday, June 13,
2022, via videoconference.

4:06 pm- Introductions, Review/revise agenda, Review previous action items

Hamilton conducted introductions for the record.

Board members: Laura Masterson (Zone 2 Director, Committee Chair), Mike Guebert (Zone 3 Director),
Jasmine Zimmer-Stucky (At-Large 2 Director)

Staff present: Nancy Hamilton (Executive Director), Julie DiLeone (Rural Lands Program Supervisor), Kathy
Shearin (Urban Lands Program Supervisor), Monica McAllister (Community Connection Liaison), Asianna
Fernandez (Executive Assistant)

Guests: Jill Critchfield (Pacific HR)

Revisions to Agenda: Discussion and Decision

4:07 pm- Approval of minutes

MOTION: Guebert moved to approve the April 18, 2022, Personnel Committee meeting minutes.
Zimmer-Stucky 2". Motion passed unanimously (3-0).

4:08 pm — Restructured Evaluation Process
Hamilton & Critchfield presented the Performance Evaluation & Feedback process

e  Walked through the process with the Management Team
e  Work plans are a collaborative effort by Management Team & Staff for the 2022-2023 fiscal year
e Currently reviewing job descriptions for current and accurate information

e Goal: no one should be surprised by their performance reviews; feedback should be ongoing, and
review should be to look back at work that has been done and a look forward toward goals.
e All Performance Evaluations should be completed by August 31,
e Supervisors are expected to do quarterly check-ins with staff
e Changed from previous process: employee would fill out self-evaluation and send to supervisor to
review and give feedback on, but now the supervisor and the employee will both do an evaluation
on the employee which will both be reviewed by the supervisor. If the employee doesn’t agree with
something in the evaluation from the supervisor, they can explain so in writing which will also be a
part of the evaluation that is filed with the executive director.
Zimmer-Stucky How are work plans going this year, especially without strategic planning efforts still
underway?
Hamilton Anything that requires a change in funding won’t take place until end of year but should
be considered in quarterly meetings.

Hamilton & Critchfield presented the Performance Evaluation Form
e Last form felt owner-ist, too long to fill out.
e Now more opportunities to give specific written feedback, which was requested by staff and

Page 1 of 3



EMSWCD January 2023 Personnel Committee Meeting Item 1a

6/13/2022

management, in addition to a 1-5 rating for each question.
e Additional Feedback section at the end for any thoughts that were not prompted by a question.
e  Critchfield In the process of making customized forms for each position.

o Taking primary responsibilities from the job descriptions and turning them into categories
so that employees are being rated against their specific expectations.

o Evaluation uses combination of feedback from both general and customized forms.
Masterson Will there be any more training around this?
Hamilton Intention is to show the evaluation forms to staff during the staff meeting and answer questions.
Shearin & Di Leone don’t think training will be necessary, but an overview will help. It’s less intensive than it
has been in the past.
Critchfield A memo document will be sent out with evaluation forms to walk staff and Management Team
through the process.
Zimmer-Stucky likes the teamwork, communication, and dependability sections standing out as
organizational values.
Guebert recommended keeping this open and fluid while values are being added from strategic planning.

Hamilton Staff were sent a Survey Monkey form last week to evaluate supervisors to contribute to the
Executive Director’s evaluation of supervisors.

e There should be a slightly different version of this for Hamilton, needs a board member to
collaborate with Critchfield again.
Action Item: Hamilton to begin creating the new version of the Executive Director Evaluation.

Masterson How are workplans fitting into this?

Hamilton Because of strategic planning, we haven’t changed the template for this coming fiscal year. We
owe ODA our District-wide work plan. The teams are each working on their own workplans now that will
contribute to the District-wide one.

Shearin Urban Lands team is working on their own plans to be similar to the Annual and Quarterly Annual
Plan, showing that one size doesn’t fit all for something like this as they add their own necessary details.
DiLeone The timing of working on the district-wide workplan before the individual workplans seems to work
well for folks this year.

Hamilton We will be looking into different ways and examples of how organizations create workplans. Work
changes throughout the year, some people need specific details, and some don’t so we also need an
overarching plan option too.

Action Item: Hamilton, Critchfield, and Personnel Committee to begin to work on workplan format and
structure.

4:34 pm - HR Handbook Final Review
Hamilton Equity Team had a lot of feedback on the HR Handbook, Management Team has finished their
contributions, Staff and Board added some feedback. Hamilton reviewed it again with Critchfield and Mitten
to finalize. We are waiting for final decision from Miller Nash on when we can internally promote or move
an employee’s position without publicly requiring a recruitment process, BOLI Language, and State Law
language to be plugged in.
Guebert

e Disconnect between work location (page 7) and remote work policy

o Hamilton It seems like we will have a hybrid workplace for the foreseeable future, and that
there isn’t an expectation for employees to work only at home.

o Critchfield We were also trying to make it work for everyone while making it known that
the District reserves the right to require a staff to work from a specific location (office, the
farm, home, etc).

o Hamilton holds the final vote while working with supervisors.

e  Pg43: FMLA: applies to all public agencies regardless of size

o Action Item: Critchfield to look into FMLA language.

e Grievance policy, complaints go to the Board Chair: there should be an onboarding process so that

Page 2 of 3



EMSWCD January 2023 Personnel Committee Meeting Item 1a

6/13/2022

new Chairs understand their responsibilities.
o Hamilton There can be a Board Chair Handbook, to refer to upon onboarding, that refers
to this HR Handbook.
o Hamilton advised to always refer to an attorney for any reason.
o Action Item: Hamilton and Critchfield to look into a Board of Directors Handbook, and
refer to Nussbaum for more insight.
o Masterson still feels that there needs to be some verbal explanation of direction for the
Board and new Board members to refer to.
Zimmer-Stucky
e Pg 8: What does “a reasonable person” mean?
o Critchfield This is using BOLI template language since BOLI is the one who reinforces it. It is
a common term used in court cases though, specifically in harassment cases.
o Hamilton The ED can make the determination whether employee complaints can go to
Board chair, and if still unsatisfied, they know they have legal help through BOLI.
o Guebert What does “individual circumstances” mean?
= Critchfield An attorney can answer this better, but it might have to do with
colleague relationships or power dynamics for example.
Masterson
e  “Stored Firearm”: Weapon cannot be on the person but can be in their car.
Action Item: Board to send any additional questions and requests to Hamilton and Critchfield.

Action Item: Critchfield to follow up on:
e  FMLA language for public employees
e  Getting rid of double comma
e Internal promotions and transfers
Action Item: Guebert and Critchfield to touch base

Motion: To Recommend approval of the Final Draft of the HR Handbook to the full Board at the July Board
Meeting. Guebert moved, Zimmer-Stucky 2". Motion passes unanimously (3-0).

5:03 pm — Information Technology & Analytics Specialist position and job description
Hamilton explained the IT & Analytics Specialist position held by Alex Woolery and referred to the final job
description in the packet. There would not be a fiscal impact as a result of this change.

Motion: To Recommend the Information Technology & Analytics Specialist position and job description to
the full Board. Guebert moved, Zimmer-Stucky 2"¢. Motion passes unanimously (3-0).

5:08 pm Closing Items
Action Items:

e Hamilton to begin creating the new version of the Executive Director Evaluation

e Hamilton, Critchfield, and Personnel Committee to begin on workplan format and structure

e  Critchfield to look into FNLA language

e Hamilton and Critchfield to look into a Board of Directors Handbook and refer to Nussbaum for
more insight.

e Board to send any additional questions and requests about the HR Handbook to Hamilton and
Critchfield.

e  Critchfield to follow up on HR Handbook after editing and internal promotions and transfers

e  Guebert and Critchfield to touch base.

5:12 pm- Adjournment

Zimmer-Stucky adjourned the meeting at 6:55 pm.

Page 3 of 3



EMSWC
Personnel Committee - 1/18/202




2022 Performance Evaluation Surveys

» Survey conducted in October 2022 for all staff, asking for feedback on the
2022 Performance Evaluation process

» Survey conducted in November 2022 for all Board members, asking for
feedback on the 2022 Performance Evaluation process for the Executive
Director




2022 Performance Evaluation Survey - Staff

» Conducted October 2022
» 19 of 20 staff members completed the survey
» Staff were asked to rate the survey questions on a scale of 1 to 5
1 - Strongly Disagree
2 - Disagree
3 - Neither Agree nor Disagree
4 - Agree
5 - Strongly Agree




2022 Performance Evaluation Survey - Staff

Question 1 - My performance evaluation felt like an accurate representation of my
performance

» Average Rating = 3.89

Question 2 - The evaluation category questions were relevant to my position at the District
» Average Rating 3.95

Question 3 - My performance evaluation was conducted in a timely manner
» Average Rating 4.21

Question 4 - | clearly understood what to expect from the performance evaluation process

» Average Rating 3.63




2022 Performance Evaluation Survey
Summary - Staff

» All survey question average ratings were on the positive end of the spectrum

» Several feedback comments noted this new process was an improvement over previous
process

» Several staff stated that the survey was conducted too far removed from the actual
evaluations (most evaluations completed by end of August, survey sent out in October)

» Performance Evaluation Process & Forms will be reviewed for improvement opportunities
each October going forward




2022 Performance Evaluation Survey - Board

» Conducted November 2022
» 2 of 5 Board members completed the survey
» Board members were asked to rate the survey questions on a scale of 1 to 5
1 - Strongly Disagree
2 - Disagree
3 - Neither Agree nor Disagree
4 - Agree
5 - Strongly Agree




2022 Performance Evaluation Survey - Board

Question 1 - The performance evaluation form questions accurately reflected the responsibilities of the
Executive Director position.
» Average Rating = 3.5
= | agree but | also think that the ED job description should be reviewed annually to ensure that the
evaluation questions are always relevant as the position evolves (if it evolves).
= The lack of total alignment may be more of a reflection that the job description needs updating

Question 2 - Did you like the opportunity to provide a humeric value to each question? If yes, why? If not, why

not?

= No, | feel that scores on performance evaluations are too subjective and distract from the discussion, which
should be the heart of any evaluation.

= I’m OK with it. But maybe a simple yes, sometimes yes, no would be a better way to get more consistent
input. It was clear that different board members had different personal interpretations of the 1-5 scale

Question 3 - The Board was provided with enough time to thoughtfully complete the performance evaluation
process.

» Average Rating 4.00
The two-meeting process where the board met first, then had time to prepare the write-up, before meeting
with Nancy worked much better than a one-meeting process.

| realize that this process was delayed, however given the focus on the strategic plan and board and ED
vacation schedules, | think it was completed in a reasonable timeframe. The board met 3-4 times in Au
for other duties and Nancy was gone all of September. Because if this, | think we did as best as we co




2022 Performance Evaluation Survey - Board

Question 4 - | clearly understood what to expect from the performance evaluation process

» Average Rating 3.00

- The ratings part was fine but | think the board didn’t have a clear, agreed upon approach to
the board review and the meeting with Nancy. Both of these went too far sideways for my
comfort and would benefit from more a more structured approach.
While individual responsibilities are clear, the challenge lies with melding five opinions into
one statement

Additional Feedback
| would like to see the merit increase replaced with a step system, separating the evaluation
process from pay increases - removing subjectivity and anxiety from the process and allowing
more focus on job successes and opportunities for improvement.
| want to make sure we are creating a process that we can live with — | don’t not believe that
a perfect employee evaluation program exists anywhere in any organization. I’d like to
remain thoughtful of the district’s process while understanding that constantly critiquing and
changing a system can create its own set of challenges.




Annual HR Process Reviews

Topic

Job Descriptions
Performance Evaluations
Employee Handbook
Hiring Process
Offboarding Process
Board Handbook

Review Timeline
March/April
October
March/April
March/April
March/April

January/February

Review Team

Management Team
Management Team
Management Team
Management Team
Management Team
Board & ED




CURRENT- NOT NEW

- Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016

" Procedures East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

APPROVED ON February 8, 2016
AND BY: EMSWCD Board of Directors

The policies and procedures below are intended to ensure East Multnomah Soil &

Water Conservation District (EMSCD) compliance with all applicable laws and assist
POLICY . . . . .
mMENT' the EMSWCD board and committees in undertaking productive and efficient
- meetings. The EMSWCD’s board, committees, and staff must abide by the policies

and procedures set forth below in points 1 —12.

All board directors, associate directors, directors emeritus, and staff of the
APPLICABILITY: | .\ o\vcD.

Associate Director: A non-voting board member appointed by the board of directors

to expand capacity and/or expertise of the board.

Board Members: Board members include directors, associate directors, and

directors emeritus.

Committee: A committee of the board is any group charged with developing

recommendations for board action. Committee membership is not limited to board
DEFINITIONS: members. All committees of the EMSWCD are subject to Oregon Public Meeting law

requirements.

Director: A voting board member who is publicly-elected or appointed to a vacant

position.

Director Emeritus: A non-voting board member appointed by the board of directors

to expand capacity and/or expertise of the board; the position is reserved for a

person who previously served as an EMSWCD board member.
ATTACHMENTS: Append!x 1: Annl.JaI Calendar of Events

Appendix 2: Motion Summary

Contents
1.0 L@ L YT 2
2.0 BOARD DIRECTORS......euutitititittueitutututetuteteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeerererereeererererenerererenernrenessssnssssssssnssssssssssssssrnsnnes 2
3.0 ASSOCIATE DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS EMERITUS ....coveiiiiiiiieieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesseseeeseesesssesesrsenmennnes 4
4.0  AUTHORITIES, REQUIREMENTS, AND RESPONSIBILITIES ......ciiiciteiiiirinieenieeenieesieeenieeesveesiaeesiveenns 6
5.0 GENERAL EXPECTATIONS ...oiiittiiiteiiee ettt ste e site st e st e e sateesiteesateesabaessbaeessteesabeeessseesasaesnnseesasessnses 7
6.0 OFFICER POSITIONS AND DUTIES....cceotttitteeiiitenieessiteesteesieessireessbeeesiseesseesssseessseessssessssessnsseesssessns 8
7.0 OFFICER ELECTIONS ..ciitteittteiteesiee ettt e st e sttt esite e siteesabeesabaesssbeesabteesateesabaessseesabaesnssesnssassnsseesseenns 9
8.0 COMMITTEES .. nteeeitt ettt sttt ste et s e st e st e st e e s ate e sabeesabeesabeeentaeesabaesasbeesabaesabaeenstaessseenasens 10
9.0 MEETING PREPARATION ....eiiiiiiiittestee ettt stte et e st e esiteesateesbteesabeesabaessubaesabaesnsseesasaesnsseesaseenns 10
10.0 GENERAL MEETING PROCEDURES .....cuuttiiitiiiteeiiee sttt eiteesieesiteesreesiee e sareesbteesateesbaesnaseesaneesnens 11
11.0  TYPES OF IMOTIONS .ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt e sttt esabe e s bt e e sabeesabaeesabeesabeeensbeesabaesnseesaseesnsns 12
12.0  HANDLING A IMOTION . c.cetteitteettt ettt sttt sbe ettt e st e sttt e sbeessbteesabeesbaeesabeesabeeesaseesabaesnaseesaseesnses 14
Appendix 1: Board and Committee CalENdar .........ccuviiiiiiiie ettt e e eere e e s entaeeeeans 16
AppPendix 2: MOTION SUMMAIY ....viiiiiiiee ettt e e et e e e s ete e e e seataeeessataeeeesstaeeesantaseesastasessassesessasseessns 17
Page 1 of 17

15



CURRENT- NOT NEW

| Wil

/‘r Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016
=% Procedures Fast Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

OVERVIEW
1.1 Background

The East Multnomah Soil & Water Conservation District (EMSWCD) is a non-regulatory, local

government agency operating east of the Willamette River centerline in Multnomah County.

EMSWCD’s mission is to help people care for land and water. EMSWCD policies and programs

are directed by a board that oversees an executive director.

1.2 Board Make-up

The EMSWCD board is made up of five publicly elected directors. Associate directors and

directors emeritus may be appointed to the board by the board of directors. Directors, associate

directors, and directors emeritus are all considered “board members.”
1.3 Director Zones

To ensure proper representation within the district, EMSWCD is divided into legally-defined

zones. As a five member board, the EMSWCD has three zone director positions and two at-large

director positions.

1.3.1 The boundaries of Zone 1 include: the Multnomah County line to the north, the
Willamette Base Line/Willamette Meridian (T.1N — T.1S township line) to the south, the
Willamette River centerline to the west, and the Sandy River centerline to the east.

1.3.2 The boundaries of Zone 2 include: the Willamette Base Line/Willamette Meridian (T.1N —
T.1S township line)' to the north, the Multnomah County line to the south, the
Willamette River centerline to the west (including Ross Island), and the Sandy River
centerline to the east.

1.3.3 The boundaries of Zone 3 include: the Multnomah County line to the north, the
Multnomah County line to the south, the Sandy River centerline to the west, and the
Multnomah County line to the east.

2.0 BOARD DIRECTORS
2.1 Responsibilities

All directors are responsible for:

2.1.1 Ensuring the EMSWCD is in compliance with all federal, state, and local laws and
consistent with the policies of ODA.

2.1.2 Approving policies needed to govern the operations of the EMSWCD; including reviewing
and approving policies to ensure fiscal accountability and integrity are maintained, and
ensuring that fiscal policies are followed and proper controls maintained.

2.1.3 Authorizing (via policy or action of the board) directors or staff to approve contracts, sign
written instruments, and take other actions on behalf of the EMSWCD.

2.1.4 Electing board officers and defining their authorities and responsibilities.

2.1.5 Appointing committee members and defining their authorities and responsibilities.

2.1.6 Recruiting, supervising, and evaluating the executive director; in order to properly manage
the EMSWCD within board-approved policies, clearly defining the responsibilities,
authorities, and actions of the executive director through a job description and work plan.

2.1.7 Ensuring that employee issues go through proper channels; personnel matters may be
directed to the executive director, the personnel committee, or the full board as
appropriate.

2.1.8 Periodically assessing progress toward accomplishing the vision, mission, strategic plan,
and annual work plans.

! Stark Street runs along the Willamette Base Line almost to the Sandy River. Stark Street curves to the south just
west of the river. The Base Line continues east. The zone boundary continues along the Base Line.

Page 2 of 17



CURRENT- NOT NEW

4‘, Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016

e Procedures East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

2.1.9 Reviewing and approving the annual budget, appropriating funds, certifying the tax, and
adjusting the budget as needed.

2.1.10 Regularly reviewing the financial status of the EMSWCD.

2.2 Qualifications

Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 568.560(2) and (3) describe the eligibility requirements for a

person to become an Oregon conservation district director.

2.2.1 All directors (at-large and zone) must:
2.2.1.1 Reside within EMSWCD boundaries; and
2.2.1.2 Be aregistered voter.

2.2.2 Zone directors must also:
2.2.2.1 Reside within the zone that is being represented and manage 10 or more acres

within EMSWCD boundaries OR reside within EMSWCD boundaries and manage
10 or more acres within the zone that is being represented.
OR
2.2.2.2 Reside within the zone that is being represented AND have served at least one
year as an EMSWCD director or associate director AND have a conservation plan
approved by the EMSWCD board.
2.3 Restrictions

2.3.1 Board members may not serve as EMSWCD staff.

2.3.2 EMSWOCD staff may not serve as board members.

2.3.3 Board members may serve as EMSWCD volunteers, but must defer to staff in such
situations as would any other volunteer.

2.4 Director Election and Appointment Processes

2.4.1 Conservation district director elections occur during the General Election in November on
even-numbered years. ORS 568 and ORS 255 outline the basic process for director
elections. Where ORS 568 is incomplete, election law under ORS 255 is followed.

2.4.2 The Oregon Department of Agriculture (ODA) is the filing officer for conservation district
elections. ODA notifies each conservation district of positions that are up for re-election,
procedures for candidates and conservation districts, applicable laws and rules, and
timelines. Conservation districts and candidates are responsible for submitting the
required forms and information to ODA and county clerks before the deadlines. It is the
responsibility of the conservation district and candidates to make sure election deadlines
are met. Candidates are responsible for publishing their information in the local voters’
pamphlet.

2.4.3 EMSWCD Zone 1 Director, Zone 2 Director and At-Large 1 Director are elected during the
same election year; Zone 3 Director and At-Large 2 Director are elected during the same
election year.

2.4.4 Directors are elected for a four-year term.

2.4.5 An oath of office will be taken by each director at or immediately following the meeting at
which they are appointed or when their elected term begins. Oaths will be witnessed by a
notary public. A signed oath will be kept on file and a copy sent to ODA.

2.5 Vacating a Director Position

As per ORS 568.560(7), a director position becomes vacant before the term expires under the

following circumstances:

2.5.1 Adirector is not attending publicly advertised meetings of the district board and has
missed at least three consecutive meetings. A majority of the board provides a written

Page 3 of 17



CURRENT- NOT NEW

4‘, Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016

e Procedures East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

recommendation that the position be declared vacant by ODA. The position then becomes
vacant when ODA issues a declaration.

2.5.2 No individual qualifies for election to have their name placed on the ballot or to have the
write-in votes cast in their name counted. The position becomes vacant on January 1
following the General Election.

2.5.3 ODA determines a candidate that received the most votes does not qualify to hold the
position. The position becomes vacant on January 1 following the General Election unless
another individual that is qualified has been appointed to the position.

2.5.4 Adirector serving in a position no longer qualifies to hold the position. The position
becomes vacant upon ODA declaring that the individual no longer qualifies for the
position.

2.5.5 Adirector resigns from a position. The position becomes vacant upon ODA receiving
notice of the resignation.

2.5.6 Adirector, elected or appointed, refuses to take the oath of office as a director. ODA may
declare the position vacant if the oath of office signed by the director is not provided.

2.6 Filling a Vacated Director Position

2.6.1 According to ORS 568.560(8), a board may fill a vacancy that occurs between General
Elections by a majority vote of remaining board members. If the remaining board directors
cannot agree on an appointee, ODA may make an appointment to fill the vacant position.
An appointed director must meet the director eligibility requirements. An appointed
director will serve until the next General Election, regardless of term. The appointment
will end on January 1 following the next General Election.

2.6.2 Vacant board director positions will be posted publicly and applications from interested
candidates will be solicited.

3.0 ASSOCIATE DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS EMERITUS
3.1 General Role

3.1.1 Associate directors and directors emeritus are volunteers and serve as non-voting
members of the board. They may be appointed to serve on and vote during committees
and may contribute to discussions of EMSWCD business.

3.1.2 Associate directors and directors emeritus fill current needs and/or bring necessary skills
and abilities as identified by the board of directors to enhance the board’s effectiveness.

3.1.3 Associate directors and directors emeritus work to pursue the mission of EMSWCD.

3.1.4 Associate directors and directors emeritus represent the interests of constituents to
EMSWCD.

3.1.5 Associate directors and directors emeritus represent EMSWCD, its board of directors, and
policies in the community.

3.2 Qualifications

Associate directors and directors emeritus must:

3.2.1 Live within the EMSWCD’s service area.

3.2.2 Attend at least three board or committee meetings prior to application.

3.2.3 Advance the current recruitment goals identified by the board by possessing identified
needed expertise in a relevant area, such as community involvement and outreach,
conservation practice implementation, project management, accounting and finance, law,
personnel management, land and water management (farming, forestry, ecological
restoration, etc.) and/or public policy. Evidence of identified needed expertise may be
obtained through 10 or more years of relevant education, employment, and personal
experiences.

Page 4 of 17



| Wil

CURRENT- NOT NEW

" Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Commiittee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016

e Procedures East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

3.24
3.25
3.2.6
3.2.7
3.2.8

3.29

Demonstrate interest and experience in natural resource conservation.

Possess a willingness and ability to attend a majority of board meetings.

Possess a willingness and ability to serve on at least one board committee and attend a
majority of the committee meetings.

Possess a willingness and ability to represent the EMSWCD with other organizations and
external committees.

Possess a commitment to and demonstrated ability to work as a team member with the
district staff and board.

Possess a commitment to a voluntary, non-regulatory, and collaborative approach to
conservation.

3.2.10 In addition to the above, directors emeritus must have served as an EMSWCD board

director.

3.3 Associate Director Appointment Process

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

334

3.35

3.3.6

The board of directors will identify needed expertise on the board and instruct staff to
post a recruitment announcement for an associate director on the EMSWCD website,
among other places. The board will consider constituent representation; desirable
personal qualities and skill sets desired and will endeavor to recruit in pursuit of these
assets.

Board members and staff should actively recruit for the needed associate director(s)
within their professional networks.

Interested candidates will submit a cover letter and resume to EMSWCD, indicating
interest in serving as an associate director, setting out relevant skills/qualifications and
indicating a particular area of interest in working with the EMSWCD and its board.
Application materials should include the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of at
least three professional references. Staff will acknowledge receipt of all applications and
keep candidates informed of the status/outcome of their request throughout the process.
Qualifications and eligibility will be verified by staff and references will be checked. An
interview by the executive director may be requested.

Applications from viable candidates will be referred to the board and considered during a
regularly scheduled board meeting. Although not a requirement, it is customary for the
candidate associate director not to be present when their appointment is discussed and
voted on. Board directors may, however, explicitly ask applicants to attend the board
meeting to introduce themselves.

The board will consider the applications and, at its sole discretion, may appoint by
majority vote one or more associate directors at that time. If, however, questions or
concerns arise, appointments may be deferred to one or more subsequent board
meetings. In either case, associate directors will not be appointed during the six-month
period preceding an election (June — November in even years).

3.4 Director Emeritus Appointment Process

When board directors voluntarily step down from their positions either at the end of their
defined service period or beforehand, they may ask (or be asked by one or more of the
remaining board directors) to remain active on the board by becoming a director emeritus.
When this is the case, the board may take up the issue at the next opportune board meeting or
they may wait until the next January board meeting. The appointment as a director emeritus will
be approved by a majority vote of the board of directors.

Page 5 of 17



CURRENT- NOT NEW

4‘, Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016

e Procedures East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

3.5 Oath of Office: An oath of office will be taken by each associate director and director emeritus
at or immediately following the meeting at which they are appointed. Oaths will be witnessed
by a notary public. A signed oath will be kept on file and a copy sent to ODA.

3.6 Terms, Dismissals, and Re-appointments: Associate directors and directors emeritus will
normally serve up to a two-year term, which will expire at the end of December in even-
numbered years. The need and relevance of existing positions and appointments will be
reviewed in even-numbered years and may be renewed/re-appointed at the board’s discretion
in January of odd-numbered years. Associate directors and directors emeritus may, however, be
removed at any time by a majority vote of the board of directors.

4.0 AUTHORITIES, REQUIREMENTS, AND RESPONSIBILITIES
4.1 General Authorities

Oregon Revised Statue 568.550 outlines the general statutory powers granted to Oregon

conservation district boards. Individual directors do not have individual powers and authorities

under the statute, unless granted by the conservation district board. Individual directors may be
given authority or power to act on behalf of the board for specific limited tasks. This authority or
power is granted through board action and must be recorded in the conservation district board
meeting minutes.

4.2 Basic Legal Requirements

The EMSWCD board must ensure that the basic requirements below, as identified in ORS 568,

are met.

4.2.1 Develop and submit an annual work plan to ODA for review and comment.

4.2.2 Develop and submit an annual report to ODA.

4.2.3 Provide for an annual audit of the accounts of receipts and disbursements in accordance
with ORS 297.210, 297.230 and 297.405 to 297.555.

4.2.4 By board Resolution, a date and time for an annual meeting must be fixed, due notice
shall be given to landowners and other residents, and the annual report and audit shall be
presented during an annual meeting.

4.2.5 Develop and submit a long-range plan to ODA for review and comment.

4.3 Additional Legal Conditions

4.3.1 Compensation: Board members may request up to S50 in compensation for each day or
portion of a day spent on EMSWCD business. Requests are made in writing using the
prescribed form, submitted to and approved by the executive director.

4.3.2 Conflicts of Interest: In accordance with Oregon law, if a board/committee member has a
potential conflict of interest (could result in a pecuniary benefit) in a matter before the
board/committee, they must disclose that potential conflict immediately. If a
board/committee member has an actual conflict of interest (will result in a pecuniary
benefit) in a matter before the board/committee they must declare that conflict before
acting and recuse themselves from discussion and voting in the matter. Benefit could be
to board/committee member, relative of board/committee member, or business with
which board/committee member or relative is associated.

4.3.3 Expense Reimbursement: Board members may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses
incurred in the course of representing EMSWCD at meetings or attending relevant
trainings. These expenses must be within the amount budgeted for such items. The
EMSWCD will not reimburse for the cost of guests accompanying a director to an event or
for the cost of alcoholic beverages.

4.3.4 Legal Compliance: All board and committee members must comply with the Oregon public
meeting law and follow approved EMSWCD rules for conducting meetings.

Page 6 of 17

20



| Wil

CURRENT- NOT NEW

" Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Commiittee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016

e Procedures East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

4.3.5 Legal Coverage: Board members acting within the “scope and power” of their legal

responsibilities as board members are protected by both the EMSWCD’s liability and crime
protection policies and by the Oregon Tort Claims Act. Board members are not protected
from personal liability for actions taken that are outside their authority, including any
willful misconduct or criminal act. The EMSWCD, however, is covered against such acts. A
personal liability “umbrella” policy is recommended but not required.

4.3.6 Political Activities: EMSWCD staff, resources, webpage etc. may not be used for political

activities. EMSWCD staff can provide information and answer questions regarding election
procedures but must do so equally for all requestors and may not perform any other tasks
related to the election process. EMSWCD staff must remain neutral in political matters.
The board may take a position on political issues through a board-approved motion, but
shall not authorize or require staff or EMSWCD resources to be used for political activities.
Please also see SDAQ’s elected officials guide.

4.3.7 Record Keeping: All board and committee members must keep full and accurate records

of all proceedings, resolutions, regulations, and orders. All EMSWCD-related records,
including emails on personal e-mail accounts, are subject to retention requirements and
disclosure. To assist with public records retention, directors may copy all EMSWCD-related
emails to pubrec@emswcd.org or other address identified by the executive director for
this purpose. The EMSWCD will provide a separate email account for EMSWCD-related
communications upon request.

5.0 GENERAL EXPECTATIONS
[See Appendix 1: Board and Committee Calendar.]

5.1

5.2

53

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Board Effectiveness: Board members should periodically assess the effectiveness of the
board’s operations.

Board Recruitment: Board members should recruit and orient new prospective directors,
associate directors, and directors emeritus.

Complaints: Complaints regarding staff or volunteers should be directed to the executive
director. Complaints regarding the executive director or directors should be directed to the
chair or the personnel committee as appropriate. The chair may call an executive session if
warranted.

Conduct: Respectful, constructive and courteous conduct is expected in meetings and when
representing the EMSWCD. Frank discussion and critical questions are encouraged, but
disruptive or destructive behavior will not be tolerated. Directors who disrupt EMSWCD work
or whose behavior reflects negatively on the EMSWCD or the mission may be prevented from
communicating with the press, staff or partners on behalf of the EMSWCD.

Confidential Information: Board members are expected to protect the confidentiality of
communications from the EMSWCD attorney, executive session discussions and other
sensitive information.

EMSWCD Representation: Board members are expected to be clear when they are speaking
for the EMSWCD and when they are not. If speaking for the EMSWCD, board members are
expected to represent accepted policy or the position of the board as a whole. When
communicating with the press, board members are expected to ensure that the entire board
and the executive director are aware of what is being communicated. It may be desirable in
the case of controversial issues to follow a set of “talking points” agreed to by the entire
board. Staff can assist in this area.

Identification of Needs: Board members should identify conservation needs and initiate,
support and evaluate programs ability to meet them.

Page 7 of 17

21


mailto:pubrec@emswcd.org

| Wil

CURRENT- NOT NEW

/‘r Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016
=% Procedures Fast Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

5.8

5.9

Knowledge of EMSWCD: Board members should have a good understanding of the EMSWCD’s
history, existing programs, ongoing work, legal authorities, and institutional relationships.
Board members should read the regular activity reports and other communications from the
executive director to stay abreast of events between meetings.

Meeting Attendance: Board members are expected to attend 12 regularly scheduled board
meetings per year as well as committee meetings, several meetings related to budget
development, the annual meeting and other special meetings. Altogether there is an average
of 20 meetings per year. Most meetings are three hours or less, although some special
meetings may require a full day or more. An average of one out-of-town event per year should
also be expected.

5.10 Meeting Preparation: Board and committee materials should be read before meetings.
5.11 Public Outreach: Board members should keep the public, landowners, other constituencies,

county commissioners, legislators, agencies, organizations, funders, and the media informed
of EMSWCD programs, services, achievements, and needs.

5.12 Public Participation: Board members should invite constituents, volunteers, partner agencies,

and groups to board and committee meetings to explore issues and seek solutions.

5.13 Public Service: Board members are expected to serve the public and the resources of the

EMSWOCD to the best of their ability. Board members should keep the public interest and the
EMSWCD’s mission foremost.

5.14 Timeliness: Board and committee meetings should commence on time, which requires that

board members arrive five to ten minutes prior to the meeting time or to notify the board or
committee chair of absences or late arrivals.

5.15 Training: All new board members are expected to thoroughly review and obtain a working

knowledge of all on-boarding materials provided by the executive director and to attend at
least one board training during the first year of service. Thereafter, all board members are
expected to participate in at least one board training event per year.

6.0 OFFICER QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIONS AND DUTIES
Officer positions and duties are described below. Only board directors may serve as board officers.
All appointed committee members may serve as committee officers.
6.1 Chair

6.1.1 The chair of the board shall preside at meetings of the board of directors and shall
perform all of the duties prescribed by the Oregon Revised Statutes. Likewise, the chair of
committees shall preside at committee meetings.

6.1.2 The chair shall maintain order in meetings and ensure that meetings are effective and
conducted in accordance with Oregon Public Meetings Law these policies and procedures.

6.1.3 The chair may limit discussion input from disruptive individuals. It is the responsibility of
the chair to maintain order and ensure effective meetings.

6.1.4 The chair shall consult with the executive director (or assigned staff for committees)
regarding the preparation of each board meeting agenda and provide an opportunity for
board/committee members to recommend agenda items.

6.1.5 The chair shall have the same right as other members of the board/committee to discuss
and to vote on questions before the board/committee.

6.1.6 The chair may call special meetings and executive sessions of the board/committee as
described by the Oregon Public Meeting Law.

6.1.7 Exit interviews should be conducted by the board chair for all outgoing board members as
feasible.

Page 8 of 17

22



CURRENT- NOT NEW

| Wil

/‘r Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016
=% Procedures Fast Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

6.2 Vice-Chair
In the chair’s absence, or during any disability of the chair, the vice-chair shall have the powers
and duties of the chair as prescribed by district policy. The vice-chair shall have such other
powers and duties as a majority of the board may from time to time determine.
6.3 Secretary
The position of secretary is required by state law. The secretary of the board shall ensure that
the EMSW(CD staff take accurate minutes of each board meeting and distribute minutes to each
board member in a timely manner for review prior to approval. The secretary shall review draft
meeting minutes and provide comment and tentative approval. The secretary shall ensure that
EMSWCD staff maintain properly authenticated official minutes in chronological order. The
secretary shall provide an overview of action items and the draft meeting minutes at each board
meeting, presenting them to the board for their review and approval.
6.4 Treasurer
6.4.1 The treasurer of the board shall review and approve monthly financial statements to
assure that accurate accounting and financial records are being maintained.
6.4.2 The treasurer shall annually review the EMSWCD's financial audit with EMSWCD
personnel prior to submitting the audit to the balance of the board.
6.4.3 The treasurer shall ensure that copies of the audit are sent to state or local agencies
requiring its submission.
6.4.4 The treasurer shall act as presiding officer of the EMSWCD’s budget committee and
ensure that the EMSWCD meets its obligations relative to local budget law.

7.0 OFFICER TERMS AND ELECTIONS

7.1 Board officers shall serve two-year terms. Committee officers shall serve one-year terms.

7.2 Board officers shall normally be elected at the January board meeting in odd-numbered years.
Committee officers shall be elected at the first committee meeting of each calendar year.

7.3 Only board directors may serve as board officers. All committee members may serve as
committee officers.

7.4 Board officers shall be determined by a majority vote of board directors. Committee officers
shall be determined by a majority vote of committee members.

7.5 The terms of all board officers, unless terminated earlier, shall expire on December 31 of even-
numbered years, but shall be extended automatically until the next regular or special meeting at
which officer elections are held. The terms of all committee officers, unless terminated earlier,
shall expire on December 31 of each year, but shall be extended automatically until the next
regular or special meeting at which officer elections are held.

7.6 In the event a new officer is not elected at the first regular or special meeting of the year, the
board/committee may hold elections over to the next regular or special meeting, or continue
balloting as many times as necessary to obtain the majority for a single candidate.

7.7 Board officers shall serve no more than one full term consecutively in each position. Committee
officers shall serve no more than two full consecutive terms in each position. The board and
committees may, however, suspend these limits if no other candidates are willing or able to
serve in an officer position. For the purposes of determining board officer term limits, a full term
is considered to be the 24-month period between January of odd-numbered years and
December of even-numbered years. For the purposes of determining committee officer term
limits, a full term is considered to be the 12-month period between January and December of
each calendar year. If an officer serves for less than a full term, than this shall not be considered
part of the full term limit period.

Page 9 of 17

23



CURRENT- NOT NEW

| Wil

/‘r Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016
=% Procedures Fast Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

7.8 Any officer appointed or elected by the board may be removed by a majority vote of the board

at any time.
8.0 COMMITTEES

8.1 The standing committees, their purposes, and general nature of meetings shall include:

8.1.1 Budget Committee: Reviews and approves the EMSWCD’s budget and related activities on
a fiscal year basis.

8.1.2 Grants Committee: Reviews policies and makes recommendations to the board
concerning all EMSWCD grant programs.

8.1.3 Land Legacy Committee: Evaluates the role, opportunities, and activities of the Land
Legacy Program and makes recommendations to the board regarding related policies,
approaches, and land acquisitions.

8.1.4 Partner in Conservation (PIC) Review Committee: Reviews PIC grant applications and
makes funding recommendations to the board.

8.1.5 Personnel and Policy Committee: Makes recommendations regarding staff and human
resources-related policies to the board. The executive director is empowered to conduct
staff exit interviews, but staff may request an exit interview with the Personnel
committee.

8.1.6 Small Projects and Community Events (SPACE) Review Committee: Reviews SPACE grant
applications and makes funding recommendations to the board.

8.2 Additional standing committees and/or ad-hoc/special committees may be established by the
board when determined necessary by the board.

8.3 Committee membership shall be determined each year, normally in January, by a majority vote
of the board of directors. Committee membership can be augmented or changed during the
committee term by a majority vote of the board of directors. Staff support to each committee
shall be determined by the executive director.

8.4 All committee members shall have the right to vote. Staff assigned to support committees shall
not vote.

8.5 Committee purposes and authorities will be reviewed and approved each year, normally in
January, by a majority vote of the board of directors in January of odd numbered years.

9.0 MEETING PREPARATION

9.1 EMSWCD board and committee meetings are governed by Oregon’s Public Meeting Law (ORS
192.630). All meetings of board/committee members during which there is a quorum are open
to the public and must be publicly noticed. Note that executive sessions are not open to the
public but must be publicly noticed.

9.2 Two weeks prior to each meeting, staff assigned as leads for each board or committee meeting
shall work with the board and committee chairs to identify the major topics of each meeting.
The major topics shall be sent to the clerk for the board of directors. The clerk shall draft the
public notices.

9.3 EMSWCD'’s intent is to publicly notice all board and committee meetings at least 10 business
days prior to the meetings. Some meetings (i.e., the annual meeting and some budget meetings)
require two notices prior to their occurrence. The clerk shall be responsible for properly noticing
all public meetings, which includes sending the meeting notices to individuals and entities that
have specifically requested notification.

9.4 Seven days prior to each meeting, draft agendas shall be completed by the executive director
(or assigned staff for committee meetings) and the board and committee chairs with input from
other board and staff members. Agendas shall identify any items where a decision is requested.

Page 10 of 17

24


JayU
Highlight


CURRENT- NOT NEW

5, WlLFH,

/‘r Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016
"% Procedures East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

9.5 Immediately upon completion, the clerk shall distribute draft agendas and supporting materials
(including the previous meeting minutes) to the board/committee members, staff, and the
public. All materials will be made available electronically and, upon request, in hardcopy form.

9.6 At the meeting itself, the meeting agenda and all supporting meeting materials will be made
available electronically to board and committee members and staff unless otherwise requested.
A sufficient number of hardcopies of the meeting agenda will be made available at all meetings
for all staff and public attendees. Two full sets of supporting meeting materials will be produced
in hardcopy for public attendees.

10.0 GENERAL MEETING PROCEDURES

10.1 These procedures are intended to promote adherence to the Oregon public meeting law
and to promote organized and productive meetings of the board and committees. Except
where required by the Oregon public meeting law, failure to strictly comply with these
procedures shall not invalidate or nullify any board or committee action.

10.2 Whenever a quorum of the board or a committee meet, proper prior public notification
must be made (see Section 9.0 above). If decisions or actions will be contemplated by the
board or a committee, a quorum of the board or committee must be present. A quorum of
the board constitutes a majority of the board directors only (as associate directors and
directors emeritus do not vote). In EMSWCD’s case, a quorum of the board is at least three
board directors. A quorum of a committee constitutes a majority of the committee
members, which varies by each committee.

10.3 Board/committee members and staff are expected to arrive 5-10 minutes prior to the
beginning of each meeting. Meetings shall start on-time.

10.4 The agenda and time limits for each agenda item shall be followed as closely as possible. At
the time stated for making such requests, members of the public or of the board/committee
may request that an item be added to the agenda. At the discretion of the chair or by a vote
of the board/committee, the agenda may be revised.

10.5 The chair has authority preside over the meeting. The chair may interrupt a
board/committee member or other speaker when necessary to move the agenda forward or
to enforce established meeting rules.

10.6 All business requiring board/committee action shall require a motion by a board director or
committee member; a second by another director or committee member; and approval by a
majority of the directors/committee members unless unanimous approval is required by law
or other applicable rule. The chair may second motions, discuss motions, and vote.

10.7 Discussion shall be limited to the subject matter being discussed. The chair is responsible for
keeping the discussion to the issue at hand.

10.8 The chair must recognize any director/committee member who is entitled to speak and
requests to do so.

10.9 A director/committee member may give an explanation of a subject before making a motion
for the board’s/committee’s consideration. Informal discussion may take place in order to
properly frame the motion and to ensure all directors/committee members understand the
motion before discussion begins. No debate on the matter will be allowed until a motion has
been made.

10.10 The director/committee member making the motion has the right to speak first during the
discussion. No director/committee member shall begin speaking while another
director/committee member is speaking.

10.11 The chair may ask a director/committee member to cease speaking if his or her comments
are repetitive of remarks previously stated. The chair may limit the number of times each

Page 11 of 17

25



| Wil

CURRENT- NOT NEW

/‘r Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016
=% Procedures Fast Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

director/committee member may speak to the same motion at the same meeting. No
director/committee member may speak to a motion a second time until every
director/committee member who desires to speak on the motion has had an opportunity to

do so.

10.12 Debate shall be limited to the merits of the discussion.

10.13 The chair has the responsibility and authority to ask any person who fails to comply with
board-approved rules of conduct, violates state or local laws, or who causes a disturbance to
leave the meeting. Upon failure to do so, the person becomes a trespasser and may be

arrested.

10.14 Meeting Minutes

10.14.1

10.14.2

10.14.3

10.14.4

10.14.5

10.14.6

10.14.7

The clerk shall keep written minutes for all board and committee meetings
including emergency and executive sessions. Every meeting will also be audio
recorded.

After transcribing the meeting minutes, the clerk shall send the minutes to
relevant staff and committee members, and (for board meetings only) the
secretary for review of accuracy and completeness.

Minutes will also be reviewed for accuracy and completeness at the following
relevant meeting, amended as needed, approved by the board or committee and
then, for board meeting minutes, signed by the secretary.

All approved minutes will be maintained in electronic format and be made
available to the public. Executive session minutes may be exempt from disclosure
as described in Oregon Public Records Law.

Any hardcopy handouts or electronic presentations made during any board or
committee meeting shall become part of the public record. Electronic versions of
the documents and presentations will be obtained, kept on file, and made publicly
available.

All approved board meeting minutes shall be emailed to a specific group of
recipients as requested by ODA.

The clerk shall track decisions, positions, motions, resolutions, and actions of the
board and committees.

11.0 TYPES OF MOTIONS
The word “motion” refers to a formal proposal by a director/committee member during an official
meeting asking the EMSWCD to take a certain action. The following are the available types of motions
and the related processes and actions that are to be followed during board and committee meetings.
11.1 Main Motions
The purpose of a main motion is to bring a particular subject before the EMSWCD board
or committee for consideration and action. Rules applying to main motions are as follows:

1111
11.1.2
11.1.3
11.1.4

It can be made only when no other motion is pending.

It must be capable of standing by itself and shall not affect any other motion.

It requires a second, can be debated, amended, or reconsidered.

It requires only a majority vote, except when a super-majority of four directors or
unanimous vote is required by rule or by law.

11.2 Ancillary Motions

Some motions are administrative in nature and affect the disposition of main motions.
Ancillary motions must be decided before a final decision on the main motion. Most
require only a majority vote. Typical ancillary motions including the following:

Page 12 of 17

26



5, WlLFH,

CURRENT- NOT NEW

" Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Commiittee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016

e Procedures East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

11.3

11.2.1 Amending the motion changes or modifies the main motion. If the meaning of the

11.2.2

11.2.3

11.2.4

11.2.5

11.2.6

main motion is substantively changed, the original main motion should be
withdrawn and a new main motion made.
Referring the motion sends the matter to a committee or another group for
additional study.
Postponing the motion sets a definite time later in a meeting or at another
meeting when the motion must be voted on.
Limiting or extending the time for debate changes the amount of debate allowed
on a motion, such as:
»The number of minutes each person can speak
»The number of times each person can speak
»The number of speeches pro and con
» Establishing a specific time when debate must cease.

[Requires approval by a super-majority of four (4) directors]
Calling for the previous question stops debate or other actions (such as
amendments) of a pending motion so it will be voted on immediately.
[Requires approval by a super-majority of four (4) directors]

NOTE: “Calling the question” is not the same; it indicates only that a director is
ready to vote, but it does not stop debate if any director wishes to continue the
discussion on the motion and is within the rules.

Tabling a motion suspends discussion temporarily without setting a time for
resuming consideration on the motion. The motion can be taken up again
whenever a majority so decides. But if the motion is not “taken off the table” by
the end of the next regular monthly meeting, the motion dies. When a motion is
tabled, all other motions attached to it, such as amendments, go with it.

Privileged Motions

The following motions deal with special matters of immediate or overriding importance
that should be allowed to interrupt anything else. They relate to the rights of the
EMSWCD as a whole or the rights of each director/committee member. No debate is
allowed on these motions, which must be dealt with as they are introduced.

1131

11.3.2

11.33

11.34

11.3.5

A call for the orders of the day forces a meeting to follow the agenda if items are
being considered out of order, or to bring up a matter that has been set for the
current time and is now in order. [No second is required for this motion. A super-
majority vote of four (4) directors is required to set the agenda aside.]

Raising a question of privilege gets the immediate attention of the chair to ask a
question or otherwise attend to a matter that cannot wait. It relates to the rights
and privileges of the directors/committee members on such matters as comfort
(noise, temperature), conduct of members, conduct of visitors, discussion of
matters that should be handled in executive session, etc. [No second is required.
This motion is usually decided informally without a vote.]

Moving for a recess requests a short intermission in the meeting for a specified
length of time.

Moving to adjourn seeks to close the meeting entirely, even while business is
pending, provided that the time for the next meeting has been set. Unfinished
business is carried over to the next meeting.

Calling for a special meeting requests the board/committee to set a date, hour,
and place for another meeting before the next regular monthly meeting. This can

Page 13 of 17

27



CURRENT- NOT NEW

| Wil

/‘r Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016
=% Procedures Fast Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

be done while business is pending, but before adjourning the meeting. [Special
meetings also may be called by the chair when necessary between meetings.]
11.4 Incidental Motions

These actions may be taken at any time and disposed of before continuing the pending

business. They are not debated or amended.

11.4.1 Moving for a point of order asserts that a rule is being violated and requests the
chair to enforce the rule. The chair is required to make a ruling on the question
involved.

11.4.2 A motion to appeal objects to a ruling by the chair. Any two directors who object
to a ruling of the chair may appeal the ruling and bring the matter to a vote
requiring a majority.

11.4.3 A motion to suspend the rules allows the directors/committee members to act on
business or in a matter prohibited by EMSWCD policies and procedures, but not in
conflict with statutory requirements such as the public meeting law. [This motion
requires a super-majority vote of four (4) directors/(#tbd) committee members.]

11.4.4 Moving to withdraw a motion prevents the motion from being voted on. Before
the chair has stated a motion, its maker can withdraw or modify it. After the chair
has stated the motion, withdrawing or modifying it requires majority approval of
the directors/committee members.

11.5 Motions for Reconsideration of Earlier Business

11.5.1 Moving to take a motion from the table requests the board to resume
consideration of a main motion tabled earlier in the current meeting or in the
previous meeting.

11.5.2 A motion to rescind seeks to strike out an entire main motion, resolution, rule, or
decision that has been adopted. [A majority vote with notice; super-majority vote
of four (4) directors without notice.]

11.5.3 A motion for reconsideration brings up an adopted motion again during the same
meeting, if new information or a changed situation makes it likely that a different
result might occur.

12.0 HANDLING A MOTION
Six steps are followed to handle a motion: three to bring the motion before the board and three to take
action on the motion. [See Appendix 2.]

12.1 A director/committee member makes a main motion.

12.1.1 A simple motion is introduced by “lI move that...” For a very important,
complex, and formal question, a resolution may be desirable: “l move the
adoption of the following resolution: “Resolved, That...”

12.1.2 Long or complex motions should be offered in writing.

12.1.3 Usually discussion is permitted only with reference to a pending motion.
However, a motion can be prefaced by a few words of explanation. A
director/committee member may ask for assistance in wording the motion.
Discussion of an issue before offering a motion requires permission of the
board.

12.2 The motion is seconded.

12.2.1 Another director/committee member who wishes the motion to be considered
seconds it, without obtaining the floor. A second merely implies the
director/committee member seconding agrees the motion should come before
the meeting and not that he/she necessarily favors the motion.

Page 14 of 17

28



CURRENT- NOT NEW

| Wil

/‘r Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016
=% Procedures Fast Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

12.2.2 If no second is heard, the chair makes sure all have heard the motion by asking
“Is there a second to the motion?” If no second is given, the matter is dropped,
and the board/committee proceeds to the next item of business.

12.2.3 The purpose of a second is to prevent time being used on a motion that only
one person wants to see introduced.

12.3 The chair states the motion.

12.3.1 The motion becomes open for debate only after being stated by the chair: He
or she may repeat the motion, “It has been moved and seconded that ...” and
then asks, “Is there any discussion?”

12.3.2 The chair may rule the motion out of order or may request clarification of the
wording of the motion. If the chair rules the motion out of order, his/her
decision is subject to appeal.

12.3.3 If the wording of the motion is not clear, the chair must ensure the motion is
put in suitable form before stating the motion and opening it up for discussion.

12.3.4 The maker of the motion may withdraw or modify the motion before it is stated.
Any director/committee member may request the maker of the motion to
modify the motion before it is stated. The maker must state acceptance or
rejection of the modification. If modified, the person seconding the motion may
withdraw the second. Modifications should be generally acceptable to the
board/committee and not bring about separate debate as in amendments.

12.3.5 Any director/committee member without being recognized may suggest certain
facts, if he or she believes they would lead to the maker withdrawing the
motion. Brief, informal discussion of a motion before it is stated may lead to a
clearer and more productive debate.

12.4 The directors debate the motion.
12.5 The chair puts the motion to a vote.

12.5.1 When debate appears to have closed, the chair puts the motion to a vote. The
chair should make sure every director/committee member understands the
motion and the effects of a “yes” vote and of a “no” vote.

12.5.2 The usual methods of voting are by voice or show of hands.

12.6 The chair announces the voting result.

12.6.1 A director can change his/her vote until the final result is announced.

12.6.2 The announcement should contain: (a) report of the vote; (b) declare the
motion as passed or defeated; and (c) state the effect of the vote.

12.6.3 Before the vote is announced, any director may require the vote be retaken
(e.g., by standing or a show of hands when a voice vote was taken) and a count
made if requested.

12.6.4 The meeting minutes are required to reflect how each director/committee
member voted. Stating that a motion “passed unanimously” is sufficient if all
directors/committee members present approve the motion.

Page 15 of 17

29



CURRENT- NOT NEW

__________

< ﬂ Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016
=% Procedures Fast Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

Appendix 1: Board and Committee Calendar

Fiscal Year
Activities

Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun

Board meetings/policy and
financial oversight
Annual report completion and

X X X X X X X X X X X X

submission X

Annual meeting X

Quarterly/mid-year reports X X X
Annual audit completion and X

submission

Director public elections X*

Board officer elections X**

Associate director/director
emeritus re-appointments ***
Committee appointments X**
First committee meeting following
committee appointments ****

X**

Committee officer elections

Budget development X X X X
Executive director performance X X
review

Annual work plan approval X

* Even-numbered years only.

** 0dd-numbered years only.

*** Original appointments of associate directors/directors emeritus can be made at any time except that associate
directors cannot be appointed during the 6-month period preceding public elections during even-numbered years.
*¥*%* Annually.

Page 16 of 17

30



CURRENT- NOT NEW

f Directive No. 1.3.1 — Board and Committee Policies and Date: 2/8/2016

" Procedures East Multnomah Soil and Water Conservation District

Appendix 2: Motion Summary

. Second Can be Can be Can be .Number Out of Order
Motion to... . . . Directors for | When Other
Required | Discussed | Amended | Reconsidered .
Acceptance Business
Adjourn Yes No No No 3 No
Amend Yes Yes Yes Yes 3 Yes
Appeal Yes Yes No Yes 3 Yes
Call for a Special
Meeting Yes No Yes Yes 3 No
Call for the Orders of On call or
the Day No No No 5 votes 4 Yes
Limit / Extend Time
for Debate Yes No Yes Yes 4 Yes
Main Motion Yes Yes Yes Yes 3 Yes
Move for a Vote Yes No No Yes 4 Yes
. Chair rules or

Point of Order No No No 4 votes No Yes
Postpone to a Certain
Time Yes Yes Yes Yes 3 Yes
Raise a Question of
Privilege No No No No Chair Rules Yes
Recess Yes No Yes No 3 Yes
Reconsider Yes Yes No No 3 Yes
Rescind 3, if notice

Yes Yes Yes Only no vote | 4, if no notice No
Refer Yes Yes Yes Yes 3 Yes
Suspend the Rules Yes No No No 4 No
Table a Motion Yes No No No 4 No
Take off the Table Yes No No No 3 No
Withdraw a Motion By maker No No Only no vote 3 Yes
Make a Nomination No Yes No No 3 No
Close Nominations Yes No Yes No 4 No
Reopen Nominations Yes No Yes Only no vote 3 No

Page 17 of 17

31



	2023_1_18 Personnel Committee Meeting Agenda
	AGENDA

	Item 1a- 22_6_13 Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes FINAL
	4:06 pm‐ Call to Order
	4:06 pm‐ Introductions, Review/revise agenda, Review previous action items
	4:07 pm‐ Approval of minutes
	MOTION: Guebert moved to approve the April 18, 2022, Personnel Committee meeting minutes. Zimmer-Stucky 2nd. Motion passed unanimously (3-0).

	4:08 pm – Restructured Evaluation Process
	4:34 pm – HR Handbook Final Review
	5:03 pm – Information Technology & Analytics Specialist position and job description
	Hamilton explained the IT & Analytics Specialist position held by Alex Woolery and referred to the final job description in the packet. There would not be a fiscal impact as a result of this change.
	5:08 pm Closing Items
	5:12 pm‐ Adjournment

	Item 2a-EMSWCD Performance Eval Survey Results - January 2023
	EMSWCD �Personnel Committee – 1/18/2023 
	2022 Performance Evaluation Surveys
	2022 Performance Evaluation Survey – Staff�
	2022 Performance Evaluation Survey – Staff�	
	2022 Performance Evaluation Survey Summary – Staff�	
	2022 Performance Evaluation Survey – Board�
	2022 Performance Evaluation Survey – Board�	
	2022 Performance Evaluation Survey – Board

	Item 3a-EMSWCD Schedule of Review - January 2023 - Copy
	Annual HR Process Reviews

	Item 4a-Policy 1.3.1_Board and Committees_Board_Final3
	OVERVIEW
	2.0 BOARD DIRECTORS
	3.0 ASSOCIATE DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS EMERITUS
	4.0 AUTHORITIES, REQUIREMENTS, AND RESPONSIBILITIES
	5.0 GENERAL EXPECTATIONS
	6.0 OFFICER QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIONS AND DUTIES
	7.0 OFFICER TERMS AND ELECTIONS
	8.0 COMMITTEES
	9.0 MEETING PREPARATION
	10.0 GENERAL MEETING PROCEDURES
	11.0 TYPES OF MOTIONS
	12.0 HANDLING A MOTION
	Appendix 1: Board and Committee Calendar
	Appendix 2: Motion Summary




